
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PLANNING BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY JUNE 28, 2016 
7:00 PM 

HOOD ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 
 
 
 

     I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – April 26, 2016 
 

III. ZONING APPLICATION 23016-645 – Mecklenburg County Sportsplex, US74 at I-485, 
from R-20 to ENT 

 
IV. ADMINISTRATIVE AMENDMENT – Eden Hall, Fullwood Lane, Revise Fullwood Land 

Wall and Landscaping 
 
 V. UPDATE AND COMMENT SESSION ON VARIOUS LONG-RANGE 

TRANSPORTATION PLANNING PROJECTS 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
  

 
   

  
 

  
  

 
  

    
   
 
   

 
 
 
 
 
PlBd ag 6-28-16 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
MEMO 
 
 
TO:  Planning Board Members 
FROM: Kathi Ingrish 
DATE:  June 20, 2016 
RE:  June 28, 2016 Regular Planning Board Meeting 
 
 
It’s now officially “summer” – the calendar says so, school is out, pools are open, families are taking their summer 
vacations, and the high temperatures and humidity have shown up. In between summer fun activities, we have a couple 
topics for you to evaluate at this month’s meeting.  
 
One zoning public hearing was held earlier this month for the Sportsplex.  The first phase – 5 fields, playground and 
picnic area, parking and entrance road – has already been completed and is in use.  The second and final phase is 
under construction now, and is anticipated to be open by the end of this calendar year.  The civil engineering plans were 
designed knowing the site would need to go through a rezoning to the new ENT Entertainment District designation.  
Although many park uses are allowed in the existing R-20 zoning category, a stadium with permanent seating is not 
permitted, so we all were aware this zoning district change would be necessary in order for the stadium portion of the 
Sportsplex to get a Certificate of Occupancy.  The ENT zoning district was created specifically for the Sportsplex and 
adjacent area where we plan to have an entertainment-focused, mixed use neighborhood.  The ENT zoning category, 
therefore, is the only one to be applied to the Sportsplex. 
 
You may recall your Board heard a request several months ago from the developers of Eden Hall, the townhouse 
development on Fullwood Lane across from Christ Covenant Church, when they wanted to remove all the existing trees 
along the road frontage and replace them with new landscaping materials.  Since then, a new development team and 
new home builder have entered the picture, and they want further changes.  Planning staff has already informed them 
that due to the prior actions here and the interest in tree canopy protection, this Administrative Amendment request 
would very likely be referred from Planning Board on to the Town Board.  The previous action was referred up to Town 
Board, and they remain very interested in any further proposals to amend what they approved. 
 
At Town Board meeting the evening before your Board’s meeting will be a short presentation about the regional CTP – 
Comprehensive Transportation Plan.  There will be several opportunities for public input this summer, so I will give you a 
quick report on it.  Some of you were able to participate last week in a work session on the future rail transit alignment 
that will run from uptown Charlotte through Matthews, so we can hear your thoughts and comments on it.  Public input on 
other transportation planning projects (E John, I-485/Weddington Rd interchange, US74) will also be scheduled in the 
coming months, but we do not yet have specific times.  It makes good sense to coordinate transportation improvements 
with land use planning. 
 
 
 
As always, please let one of us know if you find you will not be in attendance June 28.  Also, feel free to call or e-mail any 
of us with questions at any time. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PlBd ag 6-28-16 memo 



MINUTES 
PLANNING BOARD 

TUESDAY, April 26, 2016 
7:00 PM 

HOOD ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 
 
 
PRESENT:  Chair Steve Lee; Members Barbara Dement*, Kress Query, David Barley, David Wieser; Alternate 

member Kerry Lamson; Town Attorneys Charles Buckley and Craig Buie; Planning Director Kathi 
Ingrish, Senior Planner Jay Camp, Administrative Assistant/Deputy Town  Clerk Shana Robertson. 

 
ABSENT: Members Michael Ham, David Pratt, Alternate member Gregory Lee; Youth Voice Carley Newton. 
 

*Arrived at 7:52 pm. 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Steve Lee called the meeting to order at 7:02 pm. 
 
Chairman Lee noted that three regular members of the Planning Board were absent and that one alternate needed 
to be added as a voting member for this evening. Kress Query motioned to add Kerry Lamson as a voting 
member, seconded by David Barley. The motion passed unanimously.  

 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 
Kress Query motioned to approve the minutes of the March 22, 2016 meeting as submitted.  Seconded by Kerry 
Lamson and the motion was unanimously approved. 

 
ZONING APPLICATION 2016-643- Primrose School, 720 Park Center Drive, from I-1 to O (CD) 
 
Senior Planner Jay Camp stated that there have not been many changes since the public hearing.  He informed 
the Planning Board members of Michael Ham’s letter regarding his input on application 2016-643.  Mr. Camp 
recapped this was a rezoning from I-1 to Office (CD) for a 12,800 sq. ft. child care center that would accommodate 
up to 185 children.  There is a revised building elevation facade and streetscape that was received this afternoon. 
This revision was done with consideration to Town Board and Planning Board previous feedback. 
 
Mr. Lamson asked if the proposed layout and the Matthews Streetscape Plan would consider this area within the 
Downtown or outskirts. He also wanted to know what classification N. Ames St would be. Mr. Camp said that he 
would need to look at the plan to answer but street improvements have been made up to Park Center but not yet 
to that section of N. Ames. Mr. Lamson stated that with the narrow access into N. Ames that this could be related 
or tied to one another to alleviate some of the traffic concerns heard during the public hearing. Mr. Camp answered 
that this project is a prime example of how flexible the Streetscape Plan is as there is a blending of residential and 
commercial. Mr. Lamson requested clarification about the fence and design elements being in place for security 
and how it would all relate to what might need to be accomplished to both fit this property and implement the 
streetscape plan for N. Ames. Mr. Camp said that he would email some diagrams and streetscape plans after the 
meeting. 
 
John Carmichael, 101 N Tryon St, Suite 1900, Charlotte, NC 28246, addressed the Board. He reviewed the first 
versions of the daycare center per Mr. Lamson’s request. He noted that the comments received at the Public 
Hearing regarding this version were that the building was boring or institutional looking and needed to be broken 
up. Mr. Carmichael stated that Mr. Tillman with Primrose talked with his architect who added quoins (detailing of 
brick), awnings, and elevation changes in consideration of those concerns. There are other changes that the 
Commissioners suggested and the elevations will be altered more based on input.  
 
David Barley asked what the height of the parapets would be. Mr. Carmichael answered 22 feet. Mr. Carmichael 
went on to say that other comments regarding the fence were also addressed by adding brick columns to both 
sides.  The space would not allow for benches but seat walls have been added to improve aesthetics. Mr. 
Carmichael said that other changes have been made along with a door being added onto the building closer to the 
parking entrance at N. Ames.  



Planning Board Minutes 
April 26, 2016 

 
 

 2 

 
He went on to explain that Primrose did a study to find average drop off times for children.  The study clocked the 
time that it took for children to be dropped off to the centers.  Recording times include parking and getting out of 
the car, walking/carrying the children into the building and signing them into a computer system, then leaving. The 
traffic study watched four centers in the New Jersey area and the turnaround time was shown to average five and 
a half to six minutes. Mr. Carmichael stated that he did not know direct placement of the study center doors but 
with the public input and movement to meet that concern would increase efficiency. Mr. Carmichael continued 
stating that currently there are 45 onsite parking spaces and eleven on street.  Five of the onsite spaces will be 
owed by OrthoCarolina. This would give the Primrose center a net of 51 parking spaces available for use. David 
Weiser asked that with the fence in place would that leave the parents walking their children along the road to the 
access point if parking along the street.  Mr. Carmichael answered that there would be a public sidewalk on the 
street side of the fence. He then showed the Primrose site plan to help illustrate this answer.  
 
Mr. Lamson asked its use if under different property ownership. He also asked for a description of interior layout 
and the number of classrooms to understand flexibility of building. Ted Tillman with the Primrose School 
Franchising Center, 3660 Cedar Crest Rd, Acworth, GA 300101, stated that the building is unique with eleven 
classrooms, a warming kitchen, storage room for class supplies and laundry room. The structure will have wood 
studded frames and a load bearing wall through the center that could easily be converted to a pediatrician’s office 
or general office. Mr. Lamson clarified that this would be fit for other office type spaces but small retail, individual 
slotted business and other types like in the North End would not be conducive for this structure at this point. Mr. 
Camp answered that this would not be allowed in the office district. He was concerned that even if the traffic 
concerns were met would this still be the right structure for this area or would something like a two story building or 
a space that could house more businesses be a better fit for this area. Mr. Carmichael answered by saying that 
they have been asked to include in the conditions that this site be used for medical/dental type offices, daycare 
facilities, laboratory offices and general offices. 
 
Kress Query asked for consideration on having diagonal parking with the entrance coming from the OrthoCarolina 
side of the business and the exit onto N. Ames. Additionally on the exit onto N. Ames, have a left turn out only. 
This would be to keep traffic out of the narrow areas and routed back to the larger streets. He also asked for the 
applicant to consider widening or giving funds to have the rest of the small area of N. Ames Street widened while 
still keeping it a one way in and one way out.  
 
Bryan Smith, 1318 Central Ave, Suite E6, Charlotte, NC 28205, responded to this by saying angling parking 
spaces will reduce the amount of parking which was a concern all along so they do not want to lose any more 
especially with the five that OrthoCarolina will use. The concern on the one way left is that would put everyone 
back on to N. Ames or Park Center and that would concentrate the traffic. He also added that enforcing the left 
turn would be difficult.  Mr. Carmichael addressed the inquiry about funds given to the town to widen the small 
section of N. Ames.  He did speak to Primrose about this and that is something they would be willing to consider. 
He would need to gather figures in respect to cost and maybe speak to other property owners. Kress Query 
reiterated his concerns about one way in, one way out, widen the street and diagonal parking.  He thinks the 
building and new elevations have been greatly improved from the first drafts. He has no problems with the building 
or the use, just concerns of traffic and congested small roads. 
 
Chairman Steve Lee asked if there may be any consideration of one access point until road improvements are 
made. Mr. Carmichael said it could be a consideration but the issue would be OrthoCarolina’s driveway and how 
they would feel.   
 
Mr. Weiser asked Mr. Camp about the large 100 year old oak tree that sits on the property and asked if an arborist 
will or has already looked at the tree.  Mr. Camp stated that Matthews Arborist evaluated the tree last fall (2015) 
and found it to be in decline. He did recommend removal. He noted that it is in Primrose plans to remove the tree. 
 
Davis Barley asked about the right of way. Planning Director Kathi Ingrish stated that on zoning maps it shows as 
center line and does not show up in aerials.  Town Attorney Charlie Buckley stated that was a ditch bank right of 
way. Mr. Camp showed the aerial image of the area to the Board. 
 
 



Planning Board Minutes 
April 26, 2016 

 
 

 3 

Mr. Query made a motion to recommend denial of zoning application 2016-643 Primrose School from I-1 to O 
(CD). He is in favor of the use and elevations presented, the recommendation is due to the traffic concerns. Those 
concerns include the one way entrance, one way with left only exits, widening of N. Ames and diagonal parking. 
Given the current status it would be inconsistent with the Matthews Land Use Plan. David Barley seconded the 
motion which passed unanimously. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE AMENDMENT CONTINUED- Windsor Square Roundabout Revisions 
 
Planning Director Kathi Ingrish informed the Board that this case was heard last month and granted a continuation 
for the April meeting. She noted that there are two representatives in attendance to present design alternatives. 
 
Anthony Fox with Parker Poe Adams & Bernstein, LLP 401 South Tryon Street, Suite 3000, Charlotte NC 28202 
addressed the Board. He reviewed the concerns that Mr. Query had last month in regards to the exit from the 
property and the left turn movement being across a current right of way area. Other concerns that are being 
addressed are other movements in the parking lot and amendments to the site plan. Mr. Fox presented to the 
Board the original plans as well as revised plans that show the design to steer traffic to the right of the exit and limit 
the left turn movements.  Mr. Fox also went over the ingress, egress features of the site and stated that the 
proposed improvements were presented to Exxon, which they declined to support.  
 
Two options were then presented by Mr. Fox.  First, he showed the property owners preferred option, presented in 
March, which would put the curs cut into the easement. He then showed a new option that would add a median 
that moves the traffic to the right. 
 
Craig Mueller, representing SC Windsor Square, LLC, 1814 Windsor Square Drive, Matthews, NC 28105, 
addressed the Board.  He demonstrated the movements around the roundabout with a distance of 110 feet from 
one point to another or an alternate that would be 43 feet from a different point.  The new proposal would be a 
distance of 71 feet. This would be an additional eight feet from last month’s 63 foot proposal and would give 
drivers that extra room when taking a left toward the roundabout.  
 
Chairman Lee asked if it is the new proposal that the Exxon owners did not agree to.  Mr. Mueller responded that it 
has not been agreed to yet. He said that they have looked at other options but that would move them outside the 
easement and that defeats the purpose for the change request. 
 
Mr. Lamson asked if there was any consideration for extending the existing median. Mr. Mueller explained that by 
doing so it would cut off left hand movement and thus restrict the requirement that SC Windsor must meet.   
 
Mr. Query pointed out the three access points into Exxon and clarified that the third point of access gets very little 
use. Mr. Mueller confirmed and stated that there is an agreement between SC Windsor and Exxon. SC Windsor is 
trying to comply with the agreement to give as much access as possible to the Exxon site.  Mr. Query stated that 
he did go by the site and watched as cars ran up onto curbing, coming from the roundabout.  
 
Mr. Lamson asked Mr. Mueller if they are currently in litigation with Exxon and if granting the current request would 
solve their problem. Mr. Fox answered that yes they are currently in litigation and thus the reason for the 
Administrative Amendment. Mr. Lamson verified that even if Exxon is not in agreement with the proposed plan this 
would still comply with the contractual agreement between the two. 
 
Chairman Lee noted that for the record, Barbara Dement has arrived at 7:52 pm and will be able to vote. Chairman 
Lee clarified the legal situation is not a factor that will be considered in the Administrative Amendment. 
 
Mr. Lamson asked about consideration for a no left turn sign to be placed at that particular access point to 
discourage use. Mr. Fox said that a sign is not a preferred option. 
 
Chairman Lee stated that it is his belief that this access point would not see that much traffic and the revised plan 
would make it a hard turn. Mr. Query stated that he does not think he could support the amendment as it is already 
a tight circle.  He understands that this is to satisfy a third party but feels it is not the best move. 
 



Planning Board Minutes 
April 26, 2016 

 
 

 4 

Mr. Lamson stated that there are too many factors, including high planting in places and safety concerns on both 
proposed plans.  Mr. Query was not sure that the proposed plan would get used often but with the safety of the 
turn he would not like to think of anyone getting in an accident. Ms. Ingrish mentioned that the Matthews Police 
Chief has made a comment that if landscape could be kept low, under two feet, it would help with visibility. Mr. Fox 
said that SC Windsor could control that landscape. 
 
Mr. Query made a motion to deny the proposed Administrative Amendment as it was not consistent with the 
Matthews Land Use Plan and creates a hazardous condition. David Barley seconded the motion which passed 
unanimously. 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE AMENDMENT- McEwen-Moore Farmhouse at Royal Park, Moore Rd, Extend Deadline to 
Obtain CO by 3 Months (to Aug 30, 2016) 
 
Ms. Ingrish provided background on the Administrative Amendment. She stated that a zoning condition for Liberty 
Healthcare was to have an occupant in the property to stay in stable condition. The way to get a Certificate of 
Occupancy is to have a tenant in that building. This house would need to go through the Historic Landmarks 
Commission, being it is a historic structure, for making any internal or external changes. They did receive from the 
Historic Landmarks Commission a Certificate of Appropriateness in January of 2016 and updated in April 2016 
thus giving them another six months. The hope of the owner is that they may be able to get their building permits 
and have this work completed in the requested three month time frame putting completion to the end of August 
2016.  
 
Chairman Lee asked Ms. Ingrish what the consequences would be considering that this would be the second 
extension. Ms. Ingrish answered that if they do not get work completed within the allotted timeframe then 
technically there would be a zoning violation. This would be up to the Town to issue and typically a 30 day notice is 
first sent. If they are still not in compliance fines are then issued. Fines could go up to $500 per day. Ms. Ingrish 
added that this information has been sent to the Board of Commissioners so that they would be aware of the 
Planning Board’s involvement. The Commissioners feedback was that they wish this to be the last time an 
extension would be requested and this matter to be completed. 
 
Mr. Query asked that if the extension was granted and work did not meet completion of late August, then fines 
would be the next step. Ms. Ingrish confirmed that would indeed be the next step after the notice from the Town.  
Chairman Lee asked if the second extension was not granted then fines would start in a month. Ms. Ingrish again 
confirmed that zoning violations would be in effect starting in June. 
 
Mr. Lamson asked for an update from the applicant on what still needs to be completed.   
 
Hunter Diefes and Timothy Walsh of Liberty Healthcare, 2334 S. 41st Street, Wilmington, NC 28403 addressed the 
Board. Mr. Diefes answered by confirming that Ms. Ingrish was correct in stating that they have received an 
updated Certificate of Appropriateness in April that was originally dated in January 2016. He noted that a tenant 
has been procured. That tenant will be part of the owners’ affiliated homecare office in Mecklenburg County. In 
order to upfit the house to a functional office space, modifications to plans have been approved by the Historic 
Landmarks Commission and Mecklenburg County. A contractor has been acquired and as soon as permits are 
filed work will begin. The level of work was not anticipated when the home was acquired in order for it to meet 
commercial code. He noted it will take approximately two months to complete.  
 
Chairman Lee asked what level of construction work is being done. Mr. Diefes responded by saying that they have 
to make the structure ADA compliant which includes making the restroom accessible and adding a handicap ramp 
at the entrance. All the existing electrical wiring will need to be removed and replaced as well as metal studs 
added to walls for commercial code. The HVAC and plumbing also require upgrades. 
 
Mr. Query commented that the amount of work seems to be extensive for the amount of time. Mr. Diefes agreed 
that it seems a bit aggressive but the contractor believes it will fit the timeline.  Mr. Diefes reiterated that permits 
are ready to be pulled and work should start very soon. He stated that they are ready to get this completed. 
 



Planning Board Minutes 
April 26, 2016 

 
 

 5 

Ms. Dement asked for what steps have been taken since the granting of the Administrative Amendment a year 
ago. Mr. Diefes stated that another Liberty employee was handing this project up until he and Mr. Welch took it 
over in November of 2015.  He stated that the major delay was acquiring a tenant.  Efforts were made to acquire a 
third party tenant with no success. Mr. Diefes stated that the only option they had left was to relocate one of 
Liberty’s Homecare offices, an entity that the owner could control. Plans at that point had to be reworked to 
accommodate the homecare office. Several revisions at the county level were required before approval. Site plan 
was signed off in February and contractor committed in March 2016. 
 
Mr. Query asked if approval was through the historical agency or through the County.  Mr. Diefes answered that 
both have approved all revisions and improvements.  
 
Mr. Lamson asked what is meant by being able to control the tenant.  Mr. Diefes stated that Liberty Healthcare is 
the parent company and have both homecare and hospice agencies.  The homecare agency that will be a tenant 
is one of 34 in the country. Mr. Lamson went on to ask if a signed lease agreement was in place.  Mr. Diefes said 
nothing was in place yet as the current lease does not run out until June and they will have to go monthly until 
completion of construction on the site. 
 
Chairman Lee motioned to approve the Administrative Amendment allowing for an additional three months (to 
August 31, 2016) to obtain a Certificate of Occupancy on the subject property in that it is reasonable and 
consistent with the existing site conditions; due to the historic nature of the home and difficulty in filling the 
occupancy requirements. Mr. Query seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 

 
INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION- Park Concept at 10252 Monroe Road 
 
Chairman Lee provided a brief history stating that the location of  the site was recently denied a zoning change for 
an apartment community, has the historic cemetery, and backs up to Sardis Forest. 
 
Ms. Ingrish stated that this came as a suggestion from neighbors who want to get involved in their community. This 
is a property that they feel strongly about and wish to have input about. No specific request has been made at this 
time for zoning nor any direction from the Board of Commissioners. This is for information to review and discuss as 
little or as much as this Board would like. 
 
Chairman Lee clarified that this property borders Charlotte city limits. Ms. Ingrish verified by answering yes. 
Chairman Lee asked if this would be a park then the entrance would have to go through Sardis Forest. Ms. Ingrish 
said that with the park being for the neighbors the park access placement should be on the back side of the 
property but there was logically no way to do that. Mr. Barley asked if the neighborhood is mostly single family 
homes. Ms. Ingrish confirmed this. She stated that a good portion of the property along the rear was a historic 
cemetery. The cemetery could be a feature but you would not want to make that a public access point. Mr. Camp 
said that there was a stub street into the adjacent apartment community and in theory could be a trail easement. 
This easement is part of the Monroe Small Area Plan so an applicant or the Town would have to secure the 
easement with Legacy Apartments.  
 
Chairman Lee said that for deliberation on this his question would be does this fit into our Land Use Plan. He does 
not want to put in a park on the border of Charlotte.  Ms. Dement stated that this use of land does not fit into the 
Monroe Road Small Area Plan.  She noted that the area plan is a great plan and to stick with the vision. Mr. 
Lamson asked if there is historic significance to the cemetery.  Ms. Ingrish verified that it is designated an historic 
site. Mr. Query add that due to this, anyone who acquires the property will have to preserve the cemetery.  Ms. 
Dement pointed out that this property is considered a prime location and thus carries a prime purchase price. She 
said that as much as she is an advocate for parks, this location is not in the vision of Matthews. Mr. Weiser agreed 
that we need to stick to the Monroe Road Small Area Plan. 
  
 
 
 
 
 



Planning Board Minutes 
April 26, 2016 

 
 

 6 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Chairman Lee motioned to adjourn. Seconded by Ms. Barbara Dement and the motion passed unanimously. The 
meeting adjourned at 8:23 pm. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Shana Robertson 
Administrative Assistant/ Deputy Town Clerk 



 

 

 
Agenda Item: Administrative Amendment  
      
DATE:  June 20, 2016 
RE:  Eden Hall   
FROM: Mary Jo Gollnitz, Planner/Zoning Administrator 
 
 
Background/Issue: 
   
A request for an Administrative Amendment has been received for Eden Hall Subdivision to revise the 
location of the previously approved masonry wall location and streetscape. The Board of Commissioners 
approved an Administrative Amendment for Eden Hall Subdivision streetscape along Fullwood Lane on 
April 6, 2015. The amendment included removal of the existing sidewalk and trees in order “create an 
appropriately landscaped corridor along Fullwood Lane.”  A copy of the approved site plan depicting the 
meandering sidewalk, proposed trees and masonry screening wall location is attached. 
 
Since the Administrative Amendment was approved last year, the subdivision has been sold to David 
Weekley Homes. Pace Development is now managing all the site development such as trails, sidewalks 
and landscaping for the project.  

 
The applicant is requesting that the masonry wall be moved closer to Fullwood Lane, approximately 3 to 
10ft back of the right-of-way. This will allow for larger back yards on the properties backing Fullwood 
Lane. In addition, this will keep streetscape in public areas rather than on private property and the 
screening wall on the edge of the properties. 
 
The applicant is depicting a meandering sidewalk as previously approved. The revised streetscape 
includes the same number of trees, required caliber and similar location as depicted on the previously 
approved site plan. Staff has completed a review of the streetscape plan and sent comments back to 
Pace Development. The presented streetscape plan has addressed a majority of the issues and staff will 
verify that the site plan meets Matthews UDO requirements. 
 
The 2015 Administrative Amendment was approved with the stipulation that larger than minimum size 
trees will be planted in order to replace the existing canopy. Bringing the wall closer to Fullwood Lane 
provides larger back yards, however it decreases the area for new landscape plantings between the wall 
and the sidewalk. The specific new tree and shrub species will need to be carefully chosen to allow for 
adequate space to mature without significant pruning against the wall and to keep the sidewalk 
comfortably passable for pedestrians. 
 
One concern with the site plan is the masonry wall within the sight triangle at the entrance into the 
subdivision. Section 155.601.13.A of Matthews UDO states: “Within a sight triangle, and except as 
provided in § 155.601.13.B below, no structure, sign, plant, shrub, tree, berm, fence, wall, mailbox or 
object of any other kind shall be installed, constructed, set out or maintained so as to obstruct cross-
visibility at a level between two (2) feet and ten (10) feet above the level of the center of the street 
intersection.” The exceptions are for public utilities, fire hydrants, governmental signs and traffic control 
devices.  
 



 

 

Although the Ordinance allows for objects under two feet in the sight triangle, staff does not approve 
new plantings and permanent fixtures within the sight triangle because of safety concerns. Staff has 
discussed this issue with Pace Development and they feel the masonry wall meets the Ordinance 
requirements.  
 
Neither the approved construction drawings nor the approved Administrative Amendment from 2015 
show the wall in the sight triangle as well as the approved rezoning plan. The applicable pages from 
these plans are attached.  
 
Signage shown within the column at the entrance will be approved by staff on a separate application. 

 
Matthews UDO provides three levels of approvals for Administrative Amendments; staff review, Planning 
Board Action, and Board of Commissioners action. Because of expressed public sentiment, staff 
believes that the changes should be reviewed by the Planning Board for a recommendation to the 
Commissioners. The Board of Commissioners then can determine whether to hold a public input session 
prior to taking action or take action at their next meeting. 
 
If the Planning Board wishes to take action, the Statement of Consistency and Reasonableness is 
provided for your convenience. 









W
W

W

W
W

W
W

W

I

E
D

E
N

B
R

O
O

K
 D

R
IV

E
(7

5'
 P

U
B

LI
C

 R
/W

)

FULLWOOD LANE
(VARIABLE WIDTH R/W) FULLWOOD LANE

(VARIABLE WIDTH R/W)
FULLWOOD LANE

(VARIABLE WIDTH R/W)

0'15' 15' 30' 60'

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S:

D
A

TE
:

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y
:

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y

:
C

H
EC

KE
D

 B
Y

:
Q

.C
. B

Y
:

SH
EE

T 
#

:

SC
A

LE
:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
#

:

ED
EN

 H
A

LL
M

U
LT

I-F
A

M
IL

Y
 T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

LA
N

D
TE

C
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T,

 IN
C

.

JA
N

U
A

RY
 3

0,
 2

01
5

10
13

17
2

N
C

 E
ng

. F
ir

m
 L

ic
en

se
: C

-0
65

8

4/
7/

15
 -

 R
EV

IS
ED

 P
ER

 L
U

ES
A

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

04/07/15

R
EV

IS
ED

 F
U

LL
W

O
O

D
 S

T
R

EE
T

SC
A

PE

M
EK

PM
K M
EK

M
EK

1"
=

30
'

EX
-1

.0

LARGE MATURING
TREE, TYP. LARGE MATURING

TREE, TYP.

ORNAMENTAL
TREE, TYP. ORNAMENTAL

TREE, TYP.

LARGE EVERGREEN
SHRUB, TYP. LARGE EVERGREEN

SHRUB, TYP.

LARGE EVERGREEN
SHRUB, TYP.

EVERGREEN ACCENT
SHRUBS, TYP.

EVERGREEN ACCENT
SHRUBS, TYP.

BRICK SCREEN
WALL, TYP.

BRICK SCREEN
WALL, TYP.

BRICK SCREEN
WALL, TYP.

NOTE: ALL PROPOSED VEGETATION SHALL CONFORM WITH THE PLANTING
STANDARDS FOUND IN SECTION 155.606.12 OF THE TOWN OF MATTHEWS UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE.  ALL PROPOSED VEGETATION SHALL BE SELECTED
FROM THE APPROVED TREE AND SHRUB LIST FOUND IN SECTION 155.606.14 OF
THE TOWN OF MATTHEWS UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE.

APPROVED PLAN APRIL 6, 2015



APPROVED PLAN APRIL 6, 2015



POND
WATER LEVEL:682.5

(AT TIME OF SURVEY)

EIP EIP EIP EIP EIPEIP

EIP

EIP

EIP

EIP

EIP

EIP

OIP
BENT
WITH
NAIL

OIP

ANGLE
IRON

FOUND

FE
N

C
E

PP

C
O

N
C

R
E

TE
 S

ID
E

W
A

LK

E
D

G
E

 O
F P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T

B
C

BC

C
U

R
B

PP

TELE

TELE

R
IP

R
AP

E
D

G
E

 O
F P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T

C
O

N
C

R
E

TE
 S

ID
E

W
A

LK
C

O
N

C
R

E
TE

 S
ID

E
W

A
LK E

D
G

E
 O

F P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

E
D

G
E

 O
F P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T

CHRIST
COVENANT

CHURCH
ENTRANCE

POND
WATER LEVEL:682.5

(AT TIME OF SURVEY)

C
O

N
C

R
E

TE
 S

ID
E

W
A

LK
W

O
O

D
LI

N
E

C
U

R
B

SPIGOT

CHRIST COVENANT
CHURCH ENTRANCE

CHRIST COVENANT
CHURCH ENTRANCE

IS
LA

N
D

ASPHALT

U
N

D
E

R
G

R
O

U
N

D
TE

LE
C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
TIO

N
 LIN

E

GW

MARION DRIVE
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

FU
LLW

O
O

D
 LA

N
E

(P
U

B
LIC

 R
/W

 V
A

R
IE

S
)

G
R

AVEL

80

68
069

0

69
0

700

730

710

700

710

BUS-45
AASHTO 2001 (US)

B
U

S
-45

A
A

S
H

TO
 2001 (U

S
)

B
U

S
-45

A
A

S
H

TO
 2001 (U

S
)

BUS-45
AASHTO 2001 (US)

BUS-45
AASHTO 2001 (US)

B
U

S
-45

A
A

S
H

TO
 2001 (U

S
)

B
U

S
-45

A
A

S
H

TO
 2001 (U

S
)

BUS-45
AASHTO 2001 (US)

BUS-45
AASHTO 2001 (US)

B
U

S
-45

A
A

S
H

TO
 2001 (U

S
)

B
U

S
-45

A
A

S
H

TO
 2001 (U

S
)

B
U

S
-45

A
A

S
H

TO
 2001 (U

S
)

PERENNIAL RPW

SEASONAL RPW

30' POND BUFFER

30' POND BUFFER

10' WETLAND BUFFER

10' WETLAND BUFFER

30' STREAM BUFFER

PERENNIAL RPW

30' STREAM BUFFER

30' STREAM BUFFER

RIGHT OF WAY

47' FIRE TRUCK
TURNING RADIUS

47' FIRE TRUCK
TURNING RADIUS

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S:

D
A

TE
:

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y
:

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y

:
C

H
EC

KE
D

 B
Y

:
Q

.C
. B

Y
:

SH
EE

T 
#

:

SC
A

LE
:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
#

:

ED
EN

 H
A

LL
SI

N
G

LE
-F

A
M

IL
Y

 T
O

W
N

H
O

M
E 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T
LA

N
D

TE
C

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T,
 IN

C
.

JU
N

E 
18

, 2
01

4

10
13

17
2

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 N

O
T 

FO
R

 C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

S
U

B
JE

C
T 

TO
 F

IN
A

L 
D

E
S

IG
N

 C
H

A
N

G
E

S

N
C

 E
ng

. F
ir

m
 L

ic
en

se
: C

-0
65

8

4/
30

/1
4 

- 
PE

R 
ST

A
FF

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

5/
27

/1
4 

- 
PE

R 
ST

A
FF

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

6/
18

/1
4 

- 
PE

R 
ST

A
FF

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

7/
03

/1
4 

- 
PE

R 
ST

A
FF

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

0'25' 25' 50' 100'

A
U

T
O

T
U

R
N

 E
X

H
IB

IT

M
EK

M
EK M

A
M

M
A

M
1"

=
50

'

R
Z

-6
.0

2014 612
7 3 2014CURRENT

APPROVED 
REZONING 



S
33

°0
3'

09
"E

  1
59

.6
9

S
33

°0
2'

12
"E

  5
65

.8
5

40
4,096 SF
0.094 AC

41
4,120 SF
0.095 AC

42
5,928 SF
0.136 AC

43
6,070 SF
0.139 AC

44
4,272 SF
0.098 AC

45
4,296 SF
0.099 AC

46
6,130 SF
0.141 AC

47
6,179 SF
0.142 AC

48
4,390 SF
0.101 AC

66
4,536 SF
0.104 AC

65
3,502 SF
0.080 AC

64
3,502 SF
0.080 AC

63
4,326 SF
0.099 AC

62
4,326 SF
0.099 AC

61
3,502 SF
0.080 AC

60
3,502 SF
0.080 AC

67
4,536 SF
0.104 AC

68
3,502 SF
0.080 AC

69
3,502 SF
0.080 AC

70
4,326 SF
0.099 AC

71
4,326 SF
0.099 AC

72
3,502 SF
0.080 AC

73
3,502 SF
0.080 AC

82
4,536 SF
0.104 AC

81
3,502 SF
0.080 AC

80
3,502 SF
0.080 AC

79
4,326 SF
0.099 AC

78
4,326 SF
0.099 AC

77
3,502 SF
0.080 AC

76
3,502 SF
0.080 AC

34
.0

1'

128.75'

34
.0

0'
48

.1
8'

127.73'

48
.1

9'
48

.1
9'

126.72'

48
.1

8'

126.00'

27
.5

1'

34
.0

0'

125.27'

34
.0

1'

34
.0

0'
30

.0
0'

R =20.00'

L=31.42'

84.63' R=20.0
0'

L=30.9
9 '

30
.4

3'

82.18' R=20.00'

L=31.84'

28
.6

8'

121.55'

30
.0

0'
R

=20.00 '
L=

31

.42'

120.82'

21
.3

3'

34
.0

0'
34

.0
0'

120.10'
34

.0
1'

34.00'
R=20.00'
L=31.42'

24.87'34.00'42.00'42.00'34.00'34.00'

83
.0

0'

10
3.

00
'

24.87' R=20.0
0'

L=31.4
2'

44.87'34.00'

10
3.

00
'

34.00'

10
3.

00
'

34.00'

34.00'

10
3.

00
'

42.00' 42.00'

42.00'

10
3.

00
'

10
3.

00
'

34.00'

34.00'

34.00'

34.00' 42.00'

44.87'34.00'34.00'42.00'
83

.0
0'

R=20.00'L=31.42'
24.87'34.00'

10
3.

00
'

10
3.

00
'

10
3.

00
'

34.00'42.00'

10
3.

00
'

42.00'

42.00'

10
3.

00
'

10
3.

00
'

34.00'

34.00'34.00'

34.00'

34.00' 34.00' 42.00'

42.00'34.00'34.00'

10
3.

00
'

10
3.

00
'

10
3.

00
'

10
3.

00
'

10
3.

00
'

10
3.

00
'

34.00'34.00'42.00'

42.00' 34.00' 34.00' 44.87'

83
.0

0'

R=20.0
0'

L=31.4
2'

24.87'

34.00' 34.00' 42.00' 42.00' 34.00' 34.00' 44.87'

6.50'

12
.6

8'

11' SETBACK 11' SETBACK

11' SETBACK 11' SETBACK

11' SETBACK

3' SIDEWALK
EASEMENT

MASONRY SCREEN
WALL, TYP.

MASONRY
SCREEN

WALL, TYP.

RESTRIPE CENTER
TURN LANE

6' UTILITY EASEMENT,
TYP.

6' UTILITY EASEMENT,
TYP.

R=8.00'
BOC

R=1
3.0

0'
BOC

R=8.00'

BOC

R=23.00'
BOC

R=8.00'

BOC

R=8.00'BOC

R=8.00'

BOC

R=8.00'BOC

R=23.00'

BOC

R=23.00'BOC

R=5.00'BOC
R=5.00'

BOC

R=22.50'

BOC

R
=98.00'
BO

C

R=22.50'BOC

R
/W

COMMON
OPEN SPACE

COMMON
OPEN SPACE

5' SIDEWALK,
TYP.

20' REAR YARD

COMMON
OPEN SPACE

COMMON
OPEN SPACE

5' SIDEWALK.
TYP.

11' SETBACK

11' SETBACK 11' SETBACK

20' REAR YARD20' REAR YARD

20' REAR YARD20' REAR YARD

20' REAR YARD20' REAR YARD

8'
 S

ID
E

 Y
A

R
D

8'
 S

ID
E

 Y
A

R
D

8'
 S

ID
E

 Y
A

R
D

8' SIDE YARD

20' S
E

TB
A

C
K

20' S
E

TB
A

C
K

20' S
E

TB
A

C
K

PARALLEL PARKING, TYP.
(SEE SHEET C-2.8

FOR DETAIL)

10'

16
'

E
O

P

20
'

R
/W

31'
BOC

44'
R/W

24'
BOC

75
'

R
/W

17
.5

0'
B

O
C

27
.5

0'
B

O
C

10
'

B
O

C

16
'

E
O

P

20
'

R
/W

31'
BOC

44'
R/W

24'
BOC

24'
BOC

8' SIDE YARD

353.74'

25
8.

00
'

11
6.

86
'

198.41'

13
7.

14
'

353.74'

86
.0

0'

R
IG

H
T-

O
F-

W
A

Y
, T

Y
P

.

R
IG

H
T-

O
F-

W
A

Y
, T

Y
P

.

RIGHT-OF-WAY, TYP.

EDENBROOK DRIVE
(75' PUBLIC R/W)

RHETTSBURY COURT
(20' PUBLIC ALLEY)

HIGHCLERE COURT
(20' PUBLIC ALLEY)

E
G

R
E

E
N

B
R

ID
G

E
 D

R
IV

E
(44' P

U
B

LIC
 R

/W
)

FU
LLW

O
O

D
 LA

N
E

(V
A

R
IA

B
LE

 W
ID

TH
 R

/W
)

2'-0" VALLEY GUTTER, TYP.
(SEE SHEET C-2.7 FOR
DETAIL)

CONCRETE SIDEWALKS, TYP.
(SEE SHEET C-2.7 FOR
DETAIL)

3' SIDEWALK
EASEMENT

ASPHALT PAVING, TYP.
(SEE SHEET C-2.9 FOR
DETAIL)

6' UTILITY EASEMENT,
TYP.

6' UTILITY EASEMENT,
TYP.

6' UTILITY EASEMENT,
TYP.

20' REAR YARD

COLUMN, TYP.

CURB TRANSITION, TYP.
(SEE SHEET C-2.7 FOR

DETAIL)

CROSSWALK

DIRECTIONAL RAMP, TYP.
(SEE SHEET C-2.8 FOR DETAIL)

RIGHT-OF-WAY, TYP.

8' SIDE YARD

35' X 35' SIGHT
TRIANGLE, TYP.

8'
 S

ID
E

 Y
A

R
D

8'
 S

ID
E

 Y
A

R
D

8'
 S

ID
E

 Y
A

R
D

ENTRY FEATURE
(DESIGN TO BE SUBMITTED
UNDER SEPARATECOVER)

30" SEAT WALL

COLUMN,
 TYP.

CONCRETE STEPS
(SEE SHEET C-2.8

FOR DETAIL)

CONCRETE STEPS
(SEE SHEET C-2.8 FOR DETAIL)

30" SEAT WALL
COLUMN, TYP.

131°

18" MOUNTABLE CURB, TYP.
(SEE SHEET C-2.7 FOR

DETAIL)

22
'

TY
P

.

7'
TYP.

STORM EASEMENT

STORM EASEMENT

10'

ACCESSIBLE RAMP, TYP.
(SEE SHEET C-2.7 FOR
DETAIL)

5' S
ID

E
W

A
LK

, TY
P

.

5' P
LA

N
TIN

G
 S

TR
IP

, TY
P

.

5' SIDEWALK, TYP.

5' PLANTING STRIP, TYP.

5' PLANTING STRIP, TYP.

5' SIDEWALK, TYP.

5' SIDEWALK, TYP.

5' SIDEWALK, TYP.

5' SIDEWALK, TYP.

5' SIDEWALK, TYP.

5' S
ID

E
W

A
LK

, TY
P

.

5' P
LA

N
TIN

G
 S

TR
IP

, TY
P

.

5'
 S

ID
EW

AL
K,

 T
YP

.

5'
 S

ID
E

W
A

LK
, T

Y
P

.

5

ENTRY FEATURE
(DESIGN TO BE SUBMITTED
UNDER SEPARATECOVER)

ENTRY FEATURE
(DESIGN TO BE SUBMITTED
UNDER SEPARATECOVER)

CONCRETE STEPS
(SEE SHEET C-2.8 FOR DETAIL)

CONCRETE STEPS
(SEE SHEET C-2.8 FOR DETAIL) 28

'

CONCRETE STEPS
(SEE SHEET C-2.8

FOR DETAIL)

DIRECTIONAL RAMP, TYP.
(SEE SHEET C-2.8 FOR DETAIL)

6'

ACCESSIBLE RAMP, TYP.
(SEE SHEET C-2.7 FOR
DETAIL)

5' SIDEWALK, TYP.

5' SIDEWALK, TYP.

35' X 35' SIGHT
TRIANGLE, TYP.

35' X 35' SIGHT
TRIANGLE, TYP.

35' X 35' SIGHT
TRIANGLE, TYP.

35' X 35' SIGHT
TRIANGLE, TYP.

35' X 35' SIGHT
TRIANGLE, TYP.

35' X 35' SIGHT
TRIANGLE, TYP.

35' X 35' SIGHT
TRIANGLE, TYP.

STORM EASEMENT,
TYP.

TIE TO EXISTING
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

TIE TO EXISTING
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

STOP SIGN, R1-1
24"X24" PER MUTCD

STOP SIGN, R1-1
24"X24" PER MUTCD

STOP SIGN, R1-1
24"X24" PER MUTCD

STOP SIGN, R1-1
24"X24" PER MUTCD

8'
 S

ID
E

 Y
A

R
D

8'
 S

ID
E

 Y
A

R
D

8'
 S

ID
E

 Y
A

R
D

8' SIDE YARD

2'-0" VALLEY CURB, TYP.
(SEE SHEET C-2.7

FOR DETAIL)

8'
 R

E
A

R
 Y

A
R

D
 F

R
O

M
 S

C
R

E
E

N
 W

A
LL

8'
 R

E
A

R
 Y

A
R

D
 F

R
O

M
   

S
C

R
E

E
N

 W
A

LL

2'-6" CURB AND GUTTER, TYP.
(SEE SHEET C-2.7 FOR DETAIL)

2'-6" CURB AND GUTTER, TYP.
(SEE SHEET C-2.7 FOR DETAIL)

8'
 R

E
A

R
 Y

A
R

D
   

FR
O

M
 S

C
R

E
E

N
 W

A
LL

CONTRACTOR SHALL
BE RESPONSIBLE FOR
PERMITTING OF ALL
WALLS, TYP.

CONTRACTOR SHALL
BE RESPONSIBLE FOR
PERMITTING OF ALL
WALLS, TYP.

CONTRACTOR SHALL
BE RESPONSIBLE FOR
PERMITTING OF ALL
WALLS, TYP.

R=23.00'BOC

R=23.00'

BOC

DIRECTIONAL
RAMP, TYP.

DIRECTIONAL
RAMP, TYP.

DIRECTIONAL
RAMP, TYP.

ACC

ACC

ACC

ACC

ACC

ACC

ACC

ACC

ACC

ACC

PROP. FIRE
HYDRANT, TYP.

15'
SDE

15'
SDE

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S:

D
A

TE
:

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y
:

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y

:
C

H
EC

KE
D

 B
Y

:
Q

.C
. B

Y
:

SH
EE

T 
#

:

SC
A

LE
:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
#

:

ED
EN

 H
A

LL
M

U
LT

I-F
A

M
IL

Y
 T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

LA
N

D
TE

C
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T,

 IN
C

.

JA
N

U
A

RY
 3

0,
 2

01
5

10
13

17
2

N
C

 E
ng

. F
ir

m
 L

ic
en

se
: C

-0
65

8

4/
7/

15
 -

 R
EV

IS
ED

 P
ER

 L
U

ES
A

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

04/07/15

0'10' 10' 20' 40'

D
ET

A
IL

ED
 S

IT
E 

PL
A

N

M
EK

PM
K M
EK

M
EK

1"
=

20
'

C
-2

.4

C-2.1

C-2.3

C-2.5 C-2.6

C-2.4

C-2.2

APPROVED 
CONSTRUCTION PLAN



 

Consistency and Reasonableness Statements for final 
decisions on Administrative Amendments: 
(Complete one statement each for #1 and #2 below.  Provide a site specific explanation for conclusion on 
the reasonableness statement) 

1) The requested zoning action IS REASONABLE and in the public interest because: 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 OR 
 The requested zoning action IS NOT REASONABLE and in the public interest because: 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

2) The requested zoning action, as most currently amended, IS CONSISTENT with the policies for 
development as outlined by the Matthews Land Use Plan, and/or Town’s long-range Vision 
Statements, and/or other adopted policies/plans. 

 

 OR 
The requested zoning action, as most currently amended, IS NOT CONSISTENT with the 
Matthews Land Use Plan and/or other adopted land development policies and plans. 

 

 

 

(Town Board, Planning Board, or staff:  It is acceptable to determine a request is 
INCONSISTENT and still eligible for approval, or that the zoning request is 
CONSISTENT with adopted plans but still vote to deny the request.) 
Consist&Reason Admin Amend 2016 


	2016-4-26 PB minutes-DRAFT.pdf
	ADJOURNMENT
	Chairman Lee motioned to adjourn. Seconded by Ms. Barbara Dement and the motion passed unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 8:23 pm.




